. Flournoy Union
¥ ~ Elementary School District

PO Box 2260; 15850 Paskenta Rd. Flournoy, CA 96029 www flournoyschool.org 530-833-5331; 530-833-5332 fax

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 6:15 pm

MISSION STATEMENT: The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide academic excellence,
responsible citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.

DATE: Tuesday, May 11 at 6:15 pm

TYPE: School Board Meeting

LOCATION: Via web conference.

To participate in the live meeting click on the link below.
Join Zoom Meeting
https://usO4web.zoom.us/j/76189952111?pwd=VmcOUmpONTd4RVVGSFIsQ3ZuSUIsUTO09
Meeting ID: 761 8995 2111
Passcode: 5D9f62

POSTED: 05/07/2021 Flournoy School, Flournoy Store and Paskenta Store

1. PUBLIC MEETING CALL TO ORDER BY PRESIDING OFFICER , at p.m.
Roll call
Patrick Archer

Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin
Tyson Carter

Sara Valoroso

Vacancy

PUBLIC COMMENT PERTAINING TO AGENDA
Comments on Closed Session Agenda Items, (below). Any person wishing to speak to any item on the Closed
Session Agenda will be granted three minutes to make a presentation.
Comments from the Floor: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item not on the Agenda will be
granted three minutes to make a presentation. No action may be taken at this meeting on items addressed
during these comments.
Comments on Agenda Items: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item on the Agenda will be
granted three minutes to make a presentation.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Recognize staff present: Rachel Davis, Superintendent
Melinda Flournoy, Business Manager

Amanda Taylor, Teacher

Cody Weston, Custodian

Mei Vance, Instructional Aide
Erin Murphy, Instructional Aide
Maria Hererra

Deborah Hammons



3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA / /. /.
Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/Abstain

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MEETING OF: Tuesday, April 13, 2021

/. /__/
Motion/Second Ayes/Noes _/Abstain

5. COMMENTS
1. From members of the Board of Education
2. From the Superintendent and Business Manager
3. From the Staff/Teachers

6. GENERAL FUNCTION CONSENT ITEMS
1.  Bills and warrants for  April 2021
2. MOUs/Agreements: None / /. i
Motion/Second Aye/Noes /Abstain
7. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS (Attachments)

1. Consider approval of Superintendent Contract for Rachel Davis for the 2021-22 School
Year. / / /.
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes _/Abstain
2. Consider approve the Resolution for the 2020-21 Year End Closing
/. / /
Motion/Second Aye/Noes /Abstain
3. Consider approval of the TCDE Plan for the Education of Expelled and At-Risk Students

/ i /

Motion/Second  Ave/Noes _/Abstain
4. Consider approval of the final reading of the following updated board policies.
® AR 0430 Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education

e BP/AR 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
e BP/AR 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 Political Activities of Employees
e BP/AR 5126 Awards for Achievement
e BP/AR 5141.31 Immunizations
e BP6170.1 Trasitional Kindergarten
e BB 9320 Meeting and Notices / /. /.
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes _/Abstain
8. DISCUSSION ON NEXT BOARD MEETING
1. Next meeting date: Tuesday, June 22 & 23, 2021 at 6:15 p.m.
2. Possible items for action/discussion

e Budget/LCAP Public Hearing and Public Adoption
e School Plan
e Updated Policies
9. FURTHER COMMENTS
1. From members of the Board of Education
2. From the Superintendent Adjournment at p.m.




Flournoy Union L{ ‘
Elementary School District

PO Box 2260, 15850 Paskenta Rd. Flournoy, CA 96029 www.flournoyschool.org 530-833-5331; 530-833-5332 fax

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 6:15 pm

MISSION STATEMENT: The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide academic excellence,
responsible citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.

DATE: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 6:15 pm

TYPE: School Board Meeting

LOCATION: Via web conference.

To participate in the live meeting click on the link below.
Join Zoom Meeting
https://usO4web.zoom.us/j/76189952111?pwd=VmcOUmpONTd4RVVGSFIsQ3ZuSUIsUT09
Meeting ID: 761 8995 2111
Passcode: 5D9f62

POSTED: 03/09/2021 Flournoy School, Flournoy Store and Paskenta Store
1. PUBLIC MEETING CALL TO ORDER.BY PRESIDING OFFICER CT ,at _ 6:17__ p.m.
Roll call
Patrick Archer X
Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin X
Tyson Carter X

Sara Valoroso
Vacancy

PUBLIC COMMENT PERTAINING TO AGENDA
Comments on Closed Session Agenda Items, (below). Any person wishing to speak to any item on the Closed
Session Agenda will be granted three minutes to make a presentation.
Comments from the Floor: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item not on the Agenda will be
granted three minutes to make a presentation. No action may be taken at this meeting on items addressed

during these comments.
Comments on Agenda Items: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item on the Agenda will be

granted three minutes to make a presentation.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Recognize staff present: Rachel Davis, Superintendent X
Melinda Flournoy, Business Manager X
Amanda Taylor, Teacher
Cody Weston, Custodian
Mei Vance, Instructional Aide
Erin Murphy, Instructional Aide
Maria Hererra
Deborah Hammons



ADOPTION OF AGENDA _PA_/TF_ _3/0/0_
Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/Abstain

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MEETING OF: Tuesday, March 9, 2021
_PA_/TF_ _3/0/0

Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/Abstain

COMMENTS
1.  From members of the Board of Education
2. From the Superintendent and Business Manager R. Davis informed the board of the
successful spaghetti dinner fundraiser.
3. From the Staff/Teachers

GENERAL FUNCTION CONSENT ITEMS
1. Bills and warrants for March 2021

2.  MOUs/Agreements:  None _PA_/TF_ _3/0/0
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes _/Abstain

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS (Attachments)

1.  Information Only: Approval letter from TCDE regarding 2020-21 2nd Interim Busget
Report

2. Consider approval of the Busget/LCAP Hearing Planning Form
_PA_/CT_ 3/0/0

Motion/Second Aye/Noes /Abstain

3. Discuss and approve the school calendar for the 2020-21 School Year

_PA_/_CT_ 3/0/0
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes _/fAbstain

4. Approval of the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complains Ed Code 35186(d) for
April 2021. A JLIE SO 0
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes /Abstain

5. Consider approval of the final reading of the following updated board policies.

e BP 5131 Conduct PA_ ST . 3]0/ 4
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes _/Abstain

DISCUSSION ON NEXT BOARD MEETING
1. Next meeting date: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 6:15 p.m.
2. Possible items for action/discussion
e Updated Policies
e Staff Contracts for 2021-2022
e Resolution for year end closing
FURTHER COMMENTS
1. From members of the Board of Education
2. From the Superintendent Adjournment at __6:36__ p.m.




ReqgPay12a Board Report U \

Checks Dated 04/01/2021 through 04/30/2021

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date FD-OBJT Amount Amount
40214015 04/06/2021 Paskenta Community Services Di 01-5502 128.00
strict
40214016 04/06/2021 AT&T/Calnet 01-5901 84.16
40214017 04/06/2021 Basic Laboratory, Inc. 01-5502 88.40
40214018 04/06/2021 Calif. Dept. of Ed Cde Press 13-4700 114.00
40214019 04/06/2021 California Safety Company 01-5507 50.00
40214020 04/06/2021 Corning Safe & Lock 01-5600 75.00
40214021 04/06/2021 Earl's Plumbing 01-5600 441,74
40214022 04/06/2021 J&J Pumps, Inc. ) 01-5600 185.00
40214023 04/06/2021 J.M. Distributing Dairy Prod. 13-4700 558.75
40214024 04/06/2021 LV.NET LLC 01-5800 1,575.70
01-5903 675.31 2,251.01
40214025 04/06/2021 Michael D- Butler 01-5502 95.00
40214026 04/06/2021 Woods Pest Control 01-5505 265.00
40214027 04/06/2021 US Bank 01-4300 515.04
13-4300 112.60
13-8220 493.61 1,121.25
40214770 04/23/2021 Paskenta Community Services Di 01-5502 128.00
strict
40214771 04/23/2021 Basic Laboratory, Inc. 01-5502 260.40
40214772 04/23/2021 California Safety Company 01-5507 50.00
40214773 04/23/2021 Coastal Business Systems Inc. 01-5600 191.60
40214774 04/23/2021 Earl's Plumbing 01-5600 1,881.81
40214775 04/23/2021 Green Waste 01-5506 410.55
40214776 04/23/2021 LV.NET LLC 01-5800 1,575.70
01-5903 675.31 2,251.01
40214777 04/23/2021 Pacific Gas & Electric Co 01-5503 1,032.01
Total Number of Checks 21 11,662.69
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 GENERAL 19 10,383.73
13 CAFETERIA SPEC REV 3 1,278.96
Total Number of Checks 21 11,662.69
Less Unpaid Tax Liability .00
Net (Check Amount) 11,662.69
(The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization ' ESCAPE ol NN
| of the Board of Trustees. Itis recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. age 1 of jJ
908 - Flournoy School District Generated for MELINDA FLOURNOY (MFLOURNOY908), May 5

2021 10:04AM



]

Employment Agreement
between
Flournoy Union Elementary School District
and
Superintendent

This agreement is made and entered into this Eleventh Day of May 2021 between Flournoy Union
Elementary School District, hereafter “District”, and Rachel Davis, hereafter “Superintendent”.

1) Term

a)

b)

The District hereby employs Rachel Davis as Superintendent of the Flournoy Union Elementary
School District for a term of one year commencing July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022.

The Superintendent accepts such employment and agrees to efficiently and effectively perform
all the duties and responsibilities of a school superintendent described herein and under the law
during the term(s) of the agreement.

2) Compensation

3)

a)

b)

d)

Superintendent annual stipend for the 2021-2022 school year shall be composed of:

i) anadministrator stipend of Twenty-One Thousand Dollars $21,000

Said stipend shall be payable in twelve (12) equal monthly payments beginning July 31, 2021.
The district will provide all health, pension, and welfare benefits provided to certificated
employees.

The Superintendent will work hours, receive leave, and follow other working conditions granted
to certificated employees unless otherwise addressed herein.

The Governing Board reserves the right to increase the annual stipend of the Superintendent,
with the consent of the Superintendent. Any adjustment to the stipend made during the term
of this agreement shall be in the form of an amendment.

Professional Duties

a)

b)

The Superintendent and the Governing Board agree that the teaching of students is the primary
responsibility of the Superintendent/Teacher. The Superintendent/Teacher will teach one class.
The Governing Board will allow for the Superintendent/Teacher to prioritize District
administrative needs with teaching responsibilities, placing teaching first.

The Superintendent shall be the chief administrative officer of the district as prescribed by the
district policies and applicable law. The Governing Board shall be responsible for establishing
District policies. The Governing Board herewith delegates to the Superintendent all powers and
duties necessary or convenient to the efficient management and administration of the District,
to the full extent permitted by law. The Superintendent shall have authority to organize and
arrange the staff, including instruction, business, and operational affairs, which in his judgment
best serves the District. The responsibility of observation and evaluation of personnel is vested
in the Superintendent. Employment of new personnel will be recommended by the
Superintendent, unless a prior arrangement is made with the Governing Board for a particular



vacancy. The Governing Board shall refer all complaints and concerns made to individual
members of the Governing Board, or the Governing Board as a body, for resolution by the
Superintendent.

4) Outside Professional Activities

5)

6)

7)

8)

a)

b)

c)

The Superintendent may undertake outside professional activities, including consulting,
speaking/lecturing, and writing. Said outside activities may be performed for compensation,
provided said activities do not interfere with the Superintendent normal duties. If the
Superintendent receives pay or an honorarium for such activities during a teaching-workday, the
Superintendent shall remit such honorarium to the District up to the cost of the substitute.
The Superintendent may undertake professional development or pursue an advanced degree
through “distance education”. With prior Board approval, a specific number of days, including
for travel, required for professional development, including for residency requirements of the
distance education program or similar purposes will be allowed and provided including when a
substitute is required. Such days will not count towards the Superintendent leave. The
Superintendent will extend his work calendar for days attributable to an advanced degree, but
not for conferences, seminars, or other non-degree related professional development.

At the Superintendent discretion, the Superintendent will be permitted to attend, and the
District will pay for annual conferences and training of recognized professional associations.

Evaluation

a)

The Governing Board may evaluate the Superintendent as the Governing Board deems
appropriate.

Expense Reimbursement

a)

b)

The District shall reimburse the Superintendent in accordance with the Board policy for all
actual and necessary expenses incurred by him within the scope of his employment, subject to
Governing Board approval.

The Superintendent shall be reimbursed for mileage at the Internal Revenue Service allowable
rate, for use of his automobile for work-related travel outside of Tehama, Butte, and Glenn
counties.

Membership Fees

a)

b)

The Superintendent shall have annual dues/membership to the Association of California School
Administrators (ACSA) paid by the District.

Additional memberships may be approved by the Governing Board for either the
Superintendent

or the District.

Option to Terminate

a)

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Governing Board in its discretion
shall, upon the giving of written notice not later than December 31 of any school year, have the



option to terminate this Agreement effective June 30 of any year during the term of the
Agreement. If the Governing Board elects the option to terminate the Agreement, it shall pay
the Superintendent the current stipend remaining in said Agreement up to, but not exceed, six
(6) months. Payments due under this section shall be paid not later than June 30 of the
applicable year. Such settlement shall not include non-cash items, except that the District shall
contribute to the Superintendent’s insurance benefits for the same limited duration period.

b) If the Superintendent is offered a position elsewhere during the term of this contract, the
Superintendent will work with the Governing Board to provide a smooth transition and will
assist the District in hiring a replacement.

9) General Provisions

a) Governing Law
This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the parties, shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b) Entire Agreement
This agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between parties. It
supersedes and replaces any prior agreement between the parties. There are no oral
understandings, terms, or conditions, and neither party has relied upon any representation,
expressed or implied, not contained in the Agreement.

c) Amendment
This agreement may be amended at any time during the term of the Agreement. However, such
amendment shall be in writing and is only effective with the mutual consent of the
Superintendent/Teacher and the Governing Board.

d) Severability
If any provision of the Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

Approved this Eleventh Day of May 2021 in Flournoy, California by following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:
Abstention:
Absent:

Signed: Date:
Rachel Davis

Signed: Date:
Sara Valorosa , Board President




RESOLUTION FOR DIRECT SERVICE DISTRICTS
EDUCATION CODE 42601
TRANSFERS TO PERMIT PAYMENT OF OBLIGATIONS CLOSE OF YEAR

Flournoy Union Elementary School District YEAR-END CLOSING RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Flournoy Elementary School District Board of Trustees wishes to allow
the County Superintendent of Schools to identify and make the transfers between the
designated fund balance or the unappropriated fund balance and any expenditure
classification or classifications, if needed, to balance the district before year-end closing.

And, WHEREAS, the Flournoy Elementary School District wishes to allow the County
Superintendent of Schools to balance any expenditure classifications of the budget of the
district for the 2020/2021 school year as necessary to permit the payment of obligations
of the district incurred during that school year.

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Flournoy Elementary School District gives
consent to the County Superintendent of Schools to identify and make the necessary

transfers and notify the district.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by said Governing Board on the 11th day of May, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Date:

Clerk, Board of Trustees
CERTIFICATION:

I Rachel Davis, certify that the foregoing is a correct copy of a resolution passed and
adopted by the Flournoy Elementary School District on Tuesday, May 11, 2021,

Superintendent/Administrator

C\Users'\mtlournoy. FLOURNOY '\ Documents' Board: Resolutions: Year End Resolution Direct.doc



13

Tehama County Plan for the
Education of Expelled and
At-Risk Students

Developed By:
Tehama County Department of Education
and the
School Districts of Tehama County

Triennial Update
2021




TEHAMA COUNTY PLAN FOR THE EDUCATION
OF EXPELLED AND AT-RISK STUDENTS

Intfroduction

Tehama County is located approximately two hours north of Sacramento. Tehama County is
primarily rural with a rich history in forestry, fishing/hunting, and agriculture. The county is home
to just under 64,000 people.

There are currently 13 public school districts in Tehama County with a total enrollment of in the
2019-202 school year of 11,109 students, grades TK through 12. Tehama school districts are
geographically remote, creating needs for student transportation and strong inter-district
cooperation. There have been few expulsions in Tehama school districts over the past three
years. There are only three school districts within the county that confinue to operate
Community Day Schools. All LEAs have made a commitment to the implementation of
alternatives for discipline and student placement.

Overview of the Legal Requirement

Cdlifornia Education Code (EC) Section 48924 requires county superintendents, in conjunction
with superintendents of the school districts within the county, to develop a plan for providing
educational services to all expelled pupils in that county. The plan was to be adopted by the
governing board of each school district within the county, and by the county board of
education and submitted to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction (SSPI) in 1997.
Education Code Section 48926 also requires that each county superintendent of schools, in
conjunction with district superintendents in the county, submit a triennial update to that plan to
the SSPI.

Education Code Section 48926 provides specifically that the plan shall enumerate existing
educational alteratives for expelled pupils, identify gaps in educational services to expelled
pupils, and strategies for filing those service gaps. The plan shall also identify alternative
placements for pupils who are expelled and placed in district community day school programs,
but who fail to meet the terms and conditions of their rehabilitation plan or who pose a danger
to other district pupils, as determined by the governing board.

In compliance with Education Code Section 48926, the Tehama County Department of
Education (TCDE) collaborated with all Tehama County school districts to develop this plan and
process for providing educational services to expelled pupils within the county. This plan
identifies existing educational alternatives, gaps in educational services to expelled pupils, and
provides strategies for filing those service gaps.

After approval of all appropriate Boards of Trustees, this triennial plan will be submitted to the
State Superintendent of Public Instruction.

Revised: April 2021
Approved:

___%




Alternative Programs Offered in Tehama County

The following districts in Tehama County currently operate alternative programs to serve the
needs of expelled students:

1. Corming Union Elementary School District

2. Corning Union High School District

3. Evergreen Union Elementary School District

4. Red Bluff Union Elementary School District

5. Red Bluff Joint Union High School District
All districts in Tehama County are responsible for their own alternative placements, but do have
fhe option to partner with other districts for services. Please refer to the process flow charts in the
Appendix.

Additional Alternatives for Expelled Students in Tehama County include:
1. Independent Study: Education Code Section 51747 (c) (7) A student expelled for

a less serious offense may be offered independent study, provided that an

appropriate alternative classroom program is offered as a choice, and the on-site

portion of the independent study does not occur on the site from which the

sfudent was expelled (EC 48916.1 (c). Students with IEPs will have continued

services.

2 Suspended Expulsion with student placement on the same school campus.

3. Suspended Expulsion with student placement on district school campus within the
district.

4, Suspended Expulsion with student placement in district independent study, if all

parties agree and other appropriate education alternatives are available.
Enrollment at another district as described in Education Code Section 48915.1.

Addressing Individual Needs of Students

For any alternative placement, an individual student rehabilitation plan will be developed. It will
describe those program elements that the student will receive during their term of expulsion or
placement. This rehabilitation plan will provide a description of what steps must be taken for
fhat student to return to the regular school program.

To foster positive attitudes and academic progress, Tehama school districts agree that those
districts operating alternative educational programs will provide the help needed to address
student academic and behavioral challenges. Alternative educational program staff will
collaborate with families, district teachers/counselors/psychologists/school health personnel,
and community agencies.

Involvement from community law enforcement and health related agencies will occur as
appropriate.

Revised: April 2021
Approved:




County and District Gaps in Educational Services for Expelled Students,
Including Strategies to Meet Identified Needs

Identified Gaps and Needs:

Tehama County districts have identified four primary areas of need for Expelled Students:

1.
2.

The need for strengthened district capacity to serve all at-risk youth.

The need for quality, job-embedded professional development and training for
alternative education personnel.

The need for additional counseling services in regular and alternative education
programs. ‘

The need for options with behaviorally intensive students who are not successful, even in
Tehama school district alternative educational programs.

In conjunction with the Tehama County Department of Education, districts have developed a
plan to address the above needs in order of priority:

I

TCDE and six LEAs within Tehama County initiated a five-year plan to address the social
and emotional well-being of our students, staff, and community. The SEL Community of
Practice (COP) was developed and meets quarterly to build capacity within our
schools and leaders.

Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) structures and strategies have been implemented
across the county. Five districts in Tehama County participated in the SUMS/MTSS Scale
Up Initiative. All districts have a commitment to positive behavior interventions and the
use of restorative justice practices.

In the 2020-2021 school year, the Tehama County Student Services Collaborative was
awarded the MHSSA Grant. This grant provides 2.5 million dollars over four years to assist
in the development and delivery of school wide mental health prevention and
infervention services.

Professional development and support structures aligned to MTSS concepts, including
Social Emotional Learning, Trauma Informed Practices and ACEs, as well as Diversity,
Equity, and Inclusion.

Job training opportunities for at-risk youth (CTE participation and employability skill
instruction).

Monitoring Services

TCDE will continue to provide leadership while monitoring the need for programs and services.
The county office and districts will collaborate in providing additional resources should they be
required.

Revised: April 2021
Approved:




APPENDIX

FLOW CHART FOR EXPULSIONS
REGULAR EDUCATION

Mandatory Recommendation - Discretionary Recommendation

|

Law Enforcement Citation

Probation Referral

Pre-Expulsion Hearing

Behavior Plan

In Lieu of Expulsion Expuisian Hearng

Suspended Expulsion Expelled

Suspended Expulsion Contract Expulsion Order/Rehabilitation Plan

MOU with another District
Community Day School or
Alternative Educational Option

District Alternative
Program

District Alternative Program

5
Revised: April 2021
Approved:




FLOW CHART FOR EXPULSIONS

SPECIAL EDUCATION

Mandatory Recommendation - Discretionary Recommendation

Law Enforcement Citation

Probation Referral

Pre-Expulsion Hearing

/Manifestation Determination |EP

Revised IEP and/or Behavior
Plan in Lieu of Expulsion

Expulsion Hearing

Suspended Expulsion

Suspended Expulsion/Change
of Placement IEP

Expelled

Expulsion Order/Rehabilitation Plan

Post Expulsion [EP

District Alternative Program

District Alternative
Program

MOU with another District

Community Day School or
Alternative Educational
Option

Revised: April 2021
Approved:




Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Political Activities Of Employees

BP 4219.25 4119.25, 4319.25
Personnel

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of political activity, voting, and civic
engagement, and respects the right of district employees to engage in political discussions and
activities as individuals on their own time and at their own expense. When engaging in such
activities, employees shall make it clear that they are acting on their own behalf and not as
representatives of the district.

(cf. 1160 - Political Processes)
(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues)

District employees, as members of the community, may use school facilities for meetings,
including political activities, as permitted under the Civic Center Act and district policy.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

Employees shall refrain from prohibited political activities identified in law, Board policy, and
administrative regulations. Employees who engage in these activities shall be subject to
disciplinary action and/or criminal penalties.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

7050-7058 Political activities of school officers and employees
38130-38139 Civic Center Act

51520 Prohibited solicitations on school premises

ELECTIONS CODE

18304 Prohibition against use of district seal in campaign literature
GOVERNMENT CODE

3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

8314 Prohibition against use of public resources for campaign activity
82041.5 Definition of mass mailing

PENAL CODE

424  Punishment for misuse of public funds

COURT DECISIONS



Heffernan v. City of Paterson, (2016) 136 S. Ct. 1412

Diquisto v. County of Santa Clara, (2010) 181 Cal. App. 4th 236

San Leandro Teachers Association v. Governing Board of the San Leandro Unified School
District, (2010) 46 Cal. 4th 822

Downs v. Los Angeles Unified School District, (9th Cir. 2000) 228 F.3d 1003

California Teachers Association v. Governing Board of San Diego Unified School District,
(1996) 45 Cal.App. 4th 1383

L.A. Teachers Union v. L.A. City Board of Education, (1969) 71 Cal.2d 551

Pickering v. Board of Education Township High School District, (1968) 88 S. Ct. 1731
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 106 (2001)

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (2001)

77 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 56 (1994)

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD RULINGS

City of Sacramento, (2019) PERB Dec. No. 2702m

Conejo Valley Unified School District, (2009) PERB Dec. No. 2054

East Whittier School District, (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1727

Turlock Joint Elementary School District, (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1490a

San Diego Community College District, (2001) PERB Dec. No. 1467

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Office of the Attorney General: http://oag.ca.gov
Public Employment Relations Board: http://www.perb.ca.gov

(6/98 7/02) 12/20 (updated Flournoy Union Elementary School District 5/21)



~1.4

Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

AR 0430
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

Definitions

Free appropriate public education (FAPE) means special education and related services that are
provided at public expense, under public supervision and direction, and without charge; meet the
standards of the California Department of Education, including the requirements of 34 CFR
300.1-300.818; include appropriate preschool, elementary school, or secondary school education
for individuals between the ages of 3 and 21; and are provided in conformity with an
individualized education program (IEP) that meets the requirements of 34 CFR 300.320-300.324.
(Education Code 56040; 34 CFR 300.17, 300.101, 300.104)

Least restrictive environment means that, to the maximum extent appropriate, students with
disabilities, including individuals in public or private institutions or other care facilities, be
educated with individuals who are nondisabled, including the provision of nonacademic and
extracurricular services and activities. Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of
students with disabilities from the regular educational environment occurs only if the nature or
severity of the disability is such that education in the regular classes with the use of

- supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. (Education Code 56040.1;
34 CFR 300.107, 300.114, 300.117)

Elements of the Local Plan

The local plan developed by the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) shall include, but
not be limited to: (Education Code 56122, 56205, 56206)

1. Policies, procedures, and programs, that are consistent with state laws, regulations, and
policies and 20 USC 1412(a), 20 USC 1413(a)(1), and 34 CFR 300.201 governing the following:

a. Free appropriate public education
b. Full educational opportunity
e Child find and referral

d. Individualized education programs, including development, implementation, review, and
revision

e. Least restrictive environment



Procedural safeguards
g. Annual and triennial assessments
h. Confidentiality

1 Transition from the Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities programs pursuant to 20 USC
1431 to the preschool program

] Children in private schools

k. Compliance assurances, including general compliance with the federal Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (20 USC 1400-1482), Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (29 USC 794), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12101- -12213),
related federal regulations, and Education Code 56000-56865

1. A description of the governance and administration of the local plan in accordance with
Education Code 56205(a)(12)

m. Personnel qualification to ensure that personnel, including special education teachers and
personnel and paraprofessionals are appropriately and adequately prepared and trained in
accordance with Education Code 56058 and 56070 and 20 USC 1412(a)(14) and 1413(a)(3)

n. Performance goals and indicators
0. Participation in state and districtwide assessments, including assessments described in 20

USC 6301 et seq. and alternate assessments in accordance with 20 USC 1412(a)(16), and reports
relating to assessments

p. Supplementation of state, local, and other federal funds, including nonsupplantation of
funds

q. Maintenance of financial effort

r. Opportunities for public participation before adoption of policies and procedures

Suspension and expulsion rates

w

t. Access to instructional materials by blind individuals with exceptional needs and others
with print disabilities in accordance with 20 USC 1412(a)(23)

u. Overidentification and disproportionate representation by race and ethnicity of children
as individuals with exceptional needs, including children with disabilities with a particular
impairment described in 20 USC 1401 and 1412(a)(24)



V. Prohibition of mandatory medication use pursuant to Education Code 56040.5 and 20
USC 1412(a)(25)

2. An annual budget plan, including descriptions of the SELPA's allocation plan in
accordance with Education Code 56836-56845, all revenues by revenue source received by the
SELPA specifically for the purpose of special education, a breakdown of the distribution of
funds to each local educational agency (LEA) within the SELPA, projected total special
education expenditures by each LEA, projected total expenditures by the SELPA and the LEAs
within the SELPA, projected funding to be received specifically for regionalized operations, and
a breakdown of projected SELPA operating expenditures

3 An annual service plan, describing the services to be provided by each LEA, regardless of
whether the LEA participates in the local plan, including the nature of the services and the
physical location at which the services will be provided. This description shall demonstrate that
all individuals with exceptional needs shall have access to services and instruction appropriate to
meet their needs as specified in their individualized education programs.

4. Beginning July 1, 2023, an annual assurances support plan to demonstrate how the
SELPA and its participating agencies are coordinating for purposes of assuring effective
outcomes for students with disabilities, including a description of:

a. How the governing board of the SELPA will support participating agencies in achieving
the goals, actions, and services identified in their local control and accountability plans

b. How the governing board of the SELPA will connect participating agencies in need of
technical assistance to the statewide system of support

B The services, technical assistance, and support the governing board of the SELPA will
provide to meet the required policies, procedures, and programs specified in Education Code
56205

5. A description of programs for early childhood special education from birth through five
years of age

6. A description of the method by which members of the public, including parents/guardians
of individuals with disabilities who are receiving services under the plan, may address questions
or concerns pursuant to Education Code 56205

¥ A description of a dispute resolution process, including mediation and arbitration to
resolve disputes over the distribution of funding, the responsibility for service provision, and the
other governance activities specified within the local plan

8. Verification that the plan has been reviewed by the community advisory committee in
accordance with Education Code 56205 and that the committee had at least 30 days to conduct
this review before submission of the local plan to CDE



9. A description of the process being utilized to refer students for special education
instruction pursuant to Education Code 56303

10. A description of the process being utilized to oversee and evaluate placements in
nonpublic, nonsectarian schools, the method of ensuring that all requirements of each student's
IEP are being met, and a method for evaluating whether the student is making appropriate
educational progress

11. A description of how specialized equipment and services will be distributed within the
local plan area in a manner that minimizes the necessity to serve students in isolated sites and
maximizes the opportunities to serve students in the least restrictive environment

The local plan, annual budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan shall
be written in language that is understandable to the general public. They shall be adopted at a
public hearing of the SELPA, for which notice of the hearing shall be posted in each school in
the SELPA at least 15 days before the hearing. (Education Code 56205)

Availability of the Plan

The Superintendent or designee shall post on the district's web site the approved local plan,
annual budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan and any updates or
revisions to the plans. A complete copy of the local plan, annual budget plan, annual service
plan, annual assurances support plan, and policies and procedures shall be held on file in the
district office and shall be accessible to any interested party. (Education Code 56205.5)

(3/08 5/20) 12/20 (updated Flournoy School 5/21)



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Uniform Complaint Procedures

BP 1312:3 e
Community Relations

The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure
compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational
programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve
complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of
complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative
regulation.

Complaints Subject to UCP

The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve
complaints regarding the following programs and activities:

L. Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students (Education Code 46015)
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

2, Adult education programs (Education Code 8500-8538, 52334.7, 52500-52617)
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

3. After School Education and Safety programs (Education Code 8482-8484.65)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

4. Agricultural career technical education (Education Code 52460-52462)

3. Career technical and technical education and career technical and technical training
programs (Education Code 52300-52462)

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning)

6. Child care and development programs (Education Code 8200-8498)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

7 Compensatory education (Education Code 54400)



(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)
8. Consolidated categorical aid programs  (Education Code 33315; 34 CFR 299.10-299.12)

9. Course periods without educational content, when students in grades 9-12 are assigned to
such courses more than one week in any semester or in a course the student has previously
satisfactorily completed, unless specified conditions are met (Education Code 51228, 1-51228.3)

(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment)

10. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying in district programs and activities,
including in those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any
state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or
ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group
identification, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental
disability, medical condition, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression,
or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220,
Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on the person's association with a
person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics (5 CCR 4610)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures)

11. Educational and graduation requirements for students in foster care, homeless students,
students from military families, students formerly in a juvenile court school, migrant students,
and immigrant students participating in a newcomer program (Education Code 48645.7, 48853,
48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

12. Every Student Succeeds Act (Education Code 52059; 20 USC 6301 et seq.)

13. Local control and accountability plan (Education Code 52075)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

14. Migrant education (Education Code 54440-54445)

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

15. Physical education instructional minutes (Education Code 51210, 51222, 51223)



(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

16. Student fees (Education Code 49010-49013)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

17. Reasonable accommodations to a lactating student (Education Code 222)

18.  Regional occupational centers and programs (Education Code 52300-52334.7)
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)

19. School plans for student achievement as required for the consolidated application for
specified federal and/or state categorical funding (Education Code 64001)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
20. School safety plans (Education Code 32280-32289)
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

21, School site councils as required for the consolidated application for specified federal
and/or state categorical funding (Education Code 65000)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
22, State preschool programs (Education Code 8235-8239.1)

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

23, State preschool health and safety issues in license-exempt programs (Education Code
8235.5)
24, Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy

25, Any other state or federal educational program the Superintendent of Public Instruction
or designee deems appropriate

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of
the allegations, offer a process for resolving a complaint in a manner that is acceptable to all
parties. An ADR process such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve
more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve
any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the
mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that



the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.

The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the
confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any complaint
alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the complainant, and/or the
subject of the complaint if different from the complainant, confidential when appropriate and as
long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

When an allegation that is not subject to UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall
refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if
appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and
knowledge of current law and requirements related to UCP, including the steps and timelines
specified in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for
compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633,

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Non-UCP Complaints

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be investigated and
resolved by the specified agency or through an alternative process:

1, Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department
of Social Services Protective Services Division or the appropriate law enforcement agency. (5
CCR 4611)

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

2 Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program
shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services. (5 CCR 4611)



;8 Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated
and resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 -
Nondiscrimination in Employment, including the right to file the complaint with the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing.

4. Any complaint alleging a violation of a state or federal law or regulation related to
special education, a settlement agreement related to the provision of a free appropriate public
education, or a due process hearing order shall be submitted to the California Department of
Education (CDE) in accordance with AR 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for
Special Education. (5 CCR 3200-3205)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

5. Any complaint alleging noncompliance of the district's food service program with laws
regarding meal counting and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of children or adults, or
use of cafeteria funds and allowable expenses shall be filed with or referred to CDE in
accordance with BP 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance. (5 CCR 15580-15584)

6. Any allegation of discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, age, or
disability in the district's food service program shall be filed with or referred to the U.S.
Department of Agriculture in accordance with BP 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance. (5
CCR 15582)

7. Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency
or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or
teacher vacancies and misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with AR
1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Education Code 35186)

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
8200-8498 Child care and development programs
8500-8538 Adult basic education

18100-18203 School libraries

32280-32289 School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures
35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures
46015 Parental leave for students

48853-48853.5 Foster youth

48985 Notices in language other than English
49010-49014 Student fees

49060-49079 Student records, especially:
49069.5 Records of foster youth



49490-49590 Child nutrition programs

49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children

51210 Courses of study grades 1-6

51222 Physical education, secondary schools

51223 Physical education, elementary schools

51225.1-51225.2 Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students,
military-connected students, migrant students, and newly arrived immigrant students; course
credits; graduation requirements

51226-51226.1 Career technical education

51228.1-51228.3 Course periods without educational content

52059.5 Statewide system of support

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan, especially:

52075 Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan
requirements

52300-52462 Career technical education

52500-52616.24 Adult schools

54400-54425 Compensatory education programs

54440-54445 Migrant education

54460-54529 Compensatory education programs

59000-59300 Special schools and centers

64000-64001 Consolidated application process; school plan for student achievement
65000-65001 School site councils

GOVERNMENT CODE

11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

1596.792 California Child Day Care Act; general provisions and definitions
1596.7925 California Child Day Care Act; health and safety regulations

PENAL CODE

422.55 Hate crime; definition

422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2

11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3200-3205 Special education compliance complaints

4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

4680-4687 Williams uniform complaint procedures

4690-4694 Complaints regarding health and safety issues in license-exempt preschool programs
900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
15580-15584 Child nutrition programs complaint procedures

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1221 Application of laws

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972

6301-6576 Title I Improving the Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged
6801-7014 Title I1I language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students



UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975

11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

12101-12213 Title IT equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin
104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504

106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs, especially:
106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX

106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex

110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Uniform Complaint Procedure 2020-21 Program Instrument

Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter, September 22, 2017

Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015

Dear Colleague Letter: Responding to Bullying of Students with Disabilities, October 2014
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other
Students, or Third Parties, January 2001

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS

Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against
National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

Student Privacy Policy Office: http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/opepd/sppo

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/ocr

U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov

(3/19 5/20) 12/20 (updated Flournoy School 5/21)



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 1312.3
Community Relations

Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies,
these uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the
complaints specified in BP 1312.3.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

Compliance Officers

The district designates the individual(s), position(s), or unit(s) identified below as responsible for
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal civil
rights laws. The individual(s), position(s), or unit(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s)
specified in AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment responsible for handling complaints
regarding unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying)
and in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment for handling complaints regarding sexual harassment.
The compliance officer(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall
ensure district compliance with law.

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaints Procedures)

Business Manager/Human Resource Coordinator
15850 Paskenta Road, Flournoy, CA 96029

530-833-5331
mflournoy@flournoyschool.org

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the
complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which the compliance
officer has a bias or conflict of interest that would prohibit the fair investigation or resolution of
the complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed with



the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve
complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the
complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees shall cover current
state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable processes for
investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable standards for reaching decisions
on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures. Assigned employees may have access to
legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether
interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If interim
measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall
consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site
principal to implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain in
place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the
district issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first.

Notifications

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and
offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code
234.1)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the
district's UCP to students, employees, parents/guardians of district students, district advisory
committee members, school advisory committee members, appropriate private school officials or
representatives, and other interested parties. (5 CCR 4622)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The notice shall include:

1 A statement that the district is primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state
laws and regulations, including those related to prohibition of unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group, and a list of all programs and
activities that are subject to UCP as identified in the section "Complaints Subject to UCP" in the
accompanying Board policy



2. The title of the position responsible for processing complaints, the identity of the
person(s) currently occupying that position if known, and a statement that such persons will be
knowledgeable about the laws and programs that they are assigned to investigate

3. A statement that a UCP complaint must be filed no later than one year from the date the
alleged violation occurred

4. A statement that, in the case of a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying, a UCP complaint must be filed no later than six months from the date
of the alleged conduct or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the
alleged conduct

= A statement that a student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for
participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the
district's educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities

6. A statement that a complaint regarding student fees or the local control and
accountability plan (LCAP) may be filed anonymously if the complainant provides evidence or
information leading to evidence to support the complaint

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

7. A statement that the district will post a standardized notice of the educational rights of
foster youth, homeless students, former juvenile court school students now enrolled in the
district, children of military families, migrant students, and immigrant students enrolled in a
newcomer program, as specified in Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, and
51225.2, and the complaint process

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

8. A statement that complaints will be investigated in accordance with the district's UCP
and a written decision will be sent to the complainant within 60 days from the receipt of the
complaint, unless this time period is extended by written agreement of the complainant

0. A statement that the complainant has a right to appeal the district's investigation report to
CDE for programs within the scope of the UCP by filing a written appeal, including a copy of
the original complaint and the district's decision, within 15 days of receiving the district's
decision

10. A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies, including, but not



limited to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under
state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable

11; A statement that copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge

The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and
information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted on
the district web site and may be provided through district-supported social media, if available.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the
UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985.
In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information
for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

Filing of Complaints

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of
complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable
to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall
assist in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable:

1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations
governing the programs specified in the accompanying Board policy may be filed by any
individual, public agency, or organization. (5 CCR 4630)

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against student
fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if
the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of
noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful
student fees may be filed with the principal of the school or with the Superintendent or designee.



3. A UCP complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation
occurred. For complaints related to the LCAP, the date of the alleged violation is the date when
the County Superintendent of Schools approves the LCAP that was adopted by the Board. (5
CCR 4630)

4. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges having personally suffered
unlawful discrimination, a person who believes that any specific class of individuals has been
subjected to unlawful discrimination, or a duly authorized representative who alleges that an
individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying.
The complaint shall be initiated no later than six months from the date that the alleged unlawful
discrimination occurred, or six months from the date that the complainant first obtained
knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be
extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written
request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. (5 CCR 4630)

5. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an
investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the
information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.

6. When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when not the complainant, requests
confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform the complainant or victim that the request
may limit the district's ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action. When
honoring a request for confidentiality, the district shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to
investigate and resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.

Mediation

Within three business days after receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally
discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be offered to
resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall
not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or where
there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. If the
parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall
ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information.
The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at any
time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the
compliance officer shall proceed with an investigation of the complaint.



The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the
complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is
successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the actions agreed
upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then continue with
subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.

Investigation of Complaint

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the
complainant and/or the complainant's representative with the opportunity to present the
information contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the
complainant and/or representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any
evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such
evidence or information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and
review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any
additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the
investigation. The compliance officer shall individually interview all available witnesses with
information pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location where
the relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance
officer shall inform both parties of the status of the investigation.

To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview the alleged
victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in a
confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the
investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence
related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or
engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the
complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, a respondent's
refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the
allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or engagement in
any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on evidence collected,
that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant. (5
CCR 4631)

In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and other
information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct the
investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result in a



finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a
remedy in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

Timeline for Investigation Report

OPTION 1:

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare
and send to the complainant a written investigation report, as described in the section
"Investigation Report" below, within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint.

(5 CCR 4631)

For any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying), the respondent shall be informed of any extension of the timeline
agreed to by the complainant. The respondent also shall be sent the investigation report at the
same time it is provided to the complainant.

OPTION 2;

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the investigation report shall be sent
to the complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30
calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the
complainant a written report, as described in the section "Investigation Report" below. If the
complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, the complainant may, within
five business days, file the complaint in writing with the Board.

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be
answered. When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session. The Board
may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision shall be
final.

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session)

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the
time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

For any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying), the respondent shall be informed of any extension of the timeline
agreed to by the complainant, shall be sent the district's investigation report, and, in the same
manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with the Board if dissatisfied with the decision.



Investigation Report
For all complaints, the district's investigation report shall include: (5 CCR 4631)
1s The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered

2, A conclusion providing a clear determination for each allegation as to whether the district
is in compliance with the relevant law

3 Corrective action(s) whenever the district finds merit in the complaint, including, when
required by law, a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians and, for a student fees
complaint, a remedy that complies with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600

4. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the district's investigation report to CDE,
except when the district has used the UCP to address a complaint not specified in 5§ CCR 4610

5. Procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to CDE

The investigation report may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or
retaliation and for reporting any subsequent problems.

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of an investigation
report may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who
may be involved in implementing the investigation report or are affected by the complaint, as
long as the privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), notice of the investigation report
to the alleged victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the
respondent that relates directly to the alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the student
involved is enrolled in a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single
primary language other than English, then the investigation report shall also be translated into
that language pursuant to Education Code 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure
meaningful access to all relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English
proficiency.

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the investigation report shall also include a notice to the
complainant that:

1. The complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's
complaint procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private
interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with CDE. (Education Code
262.3)

s The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state



courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262.3)

2. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender,
disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil
Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

Corrective Actions

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate
corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school

or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies;
training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate surveys.

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim but
not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following;

1 Counseling

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

2. Academic support

3 Health services

4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus

& Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or
retaliation

6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation

does not penalize the victim

s Restorative justice
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no
retaliation

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law



2. Parent/guardian conference

3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others
4. Positive behavior support
5. Referral to a student success team

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges as
permitted by law

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
7 Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and
collective bargaining agreement.

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community
to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that
constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying),
that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it.

When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the
complainant or other affected person.

However, if a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits,
and other charges, physical education instructional minutes, courses without educational content,
or any requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by
regulation of the State Board of Education. (Education Code 49013, 51222, 51223, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all
affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior



to the filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600)
Appeals to the California Department of Education

Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's investigation report on a complaint
regarding any specified federal or state educational program subject to UCP may file an appeal
in writing with CDE within 30 calendar days of receiving the district's investigation report. (5
CCR 4632)

The appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of
the district's investigation report for that complaint. The complainant shall specify and explain
the basis for the appeal, including as least one of the following: (5 CCR 4632)

L. The district failed to follow its complaint procedures.

2. Relative to the allegations of the complaint, the district's investigation report lacks
material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law.

3. The material findings of factin the district's investigation report are not supported by
substantial evidence.

4, The legal conclusion in the district's investigation report is inconsistent with the law.

3. In a case in which the district found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide
a proper remedy.

Upon notification by CDE that the district's investigation report has been appealed, the
Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to CDE within 10 days of the
date of notification: (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint
2. A copy of the district's investigation report
3. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and

documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator
4, A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
5. A copy of the district's UCP

0. Other relevant information requested by CDE

If notified by CDE that the district's investigation report failed to address allegation(s) raised by



the complaint, the district shall, within 20 days of the notification, provide CDE and the
appellant with an amended investigation report that addresses the allegation(s) that were not
addressed in the original investigation report. The amended report shall also inform the
appellant of the right to separately appeal the amended report with respect to the allegation(s)
that were not addressed in the original report. (5 CCR 4632)

Health and Safety Complaints in License-Exempt Preschool Programs

Any complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall be
addressed through the procedures described in 5 CCR 4690-4694.

In each license-exempt CSPP classroom, a notice shall be posted notifying parents/guardians,
students, and teachers of the health and safety requirements of Title 5 regulations that apply to
CSPP programs pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1596.7925 and the location at which to
obtain a form to file any complaint alleging noncompliance with those requirements.
(Education Code 8235.5; 5 CCR 4690)

The district's annual UCP notification distributed pursuant to 5 CCR 4622 shall clearly indicate
which of its CSPP programs are operating as exempt from licensing and which CSPP programs
are operating pursuant to requirements under Title 22 of the Code of Regulations. (5 CCR
4691)

Any complaint regarding specified health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program
shall be filed with the preschool program administrator or designee, and may be filed
anonymously. The complaint form shall specify the location for filing the complaint and shall
contain a space to indicate whether the complainant desires a response to the complaint. If it is
determined that the complaint is beyond the authority of the preschool program administrator,
the matter shall be forwarded to the Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, not to exceed
10 working days, for resolution. (Education Code 8235.5; 5 CCR 4690)

Investigation of a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program
shall begin within 10 days of receipt of the complaint. (Education Code 8235.5; 5 CCR 4692)

The preschool administrator or designee shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time
period not to exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received. If the
complainant has indicated on the complaint form a desire to receive a response to the complaint,
the preschool administrator or Superintendent's designee shall, within 45 working days of the
initial filing of the complaint, report the resolution of the complaint to the complainant and
CDE's assigned field consultant. If the preschool administrator makes this report, the information
shall be reported at the same time to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 8235.5; 5
CCR 4692)

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, the complainant has the right
to describe the complaint to the Board at a regularly scheduled meeting and, within 30 days of
the date of the written report, may file a written appeal of the district's decision to the



Superintendent of Public Instruction in accordance with 5 CCR 4632. (Education Code 8235.5;
5 CCR 4693, 4694)

On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature
and resolution of all CSPP health and safety complaints, including the number of complaints by
general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints, to the Board at a
regularly scheduled Board meeting and to the County Superintendent of Schools. (5 CCR 4693)

(3/19 5/20) 12/20 (updated 5/21 Flournoy School)



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Political Activities Of Employees

AR 4119.254219.25, 4319.25
Personnel

No employee shall be prohibited from soliciting or receiving political funds or contributions to
promote the support or defeat of a ballot measure during nonworking time, including before and
after school, the lunch period, or other scheduled work intermittency during the school day.
(Education Code 7056)

District employees shall not:

1. Use district funds, services, supplies, equipment, work hours, or other public resources to
urge the support or defeat of any ballot measure or candidate, including any candidate for
clection to the Governing Board (Education Code 7054, 7056; Government Code 8314)

2, Use the district's seal in any campaign literature or mass mailing with the intent to
deceive voters, including, but not limited to, the use of a reproduction or facsimile of the seal in a
manner that creates a misleading, erroneous, or false impression that the document is authorized
by the Board, a Board member, or the district (Elections Code 18304)

(cf. 1160 - Political Processes)

. During working hours, solicit or receive any political funds or contributions to promote
the passage or defeat of a ballot measure that would affect the rate of pay, hours of work,
retirement, civil service or other working conditions (Education Code 7056)

4. During working hours, solicit or receive any political funds or contributions to promote
the passage or defeat of other types of ballot measures

3. Use district equipment for the preparation or reproduction of political campaign materials
(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

6. Post or distribute political campaign materials in classrooms, through distance learning
platforms, or on district property

7 Disseminate political campaign materials through the district's mail service, e-mail, or
staff mailboxes

(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)



8. Use students to write, address, or distribute political campaign materials

9, Present viewpoints on particular candidates or ballot measures in the classroom without
giving equal time to the presentation of all perspectives

(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues)

10.  Wear buttons, hats, or other articles of clothing that express political opinions on ballot
measures or candidates during instructional time

Political Activities of Employee Organizations

Employee organizations shall not use district funds, services, supplies, or equipment, such as
staff mailboxes or the district mail system, to urge the support or defeat of any ballot measure or
candidate, including any candidate for election to the Board. (Education Code 7054)

(cf. 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units)

No employee organization or its officers, agents, or representatives shall be prohibited from
soliciting or receiving political funds or contributions to promote the passage or defeat of a ballot

measure during nonworking time, including before and after school, the lunch period, or other
scheduled work intermittency during the school day. (Education Code 7056)

(6/98 7/02) 12/20 (updated Flournoy Union Elementary School District 5/21)



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Awards For Achievement

BP 5126
Students

The Governing Board encourages excellence as a goal for all students and wishes to publicly
recognize students for exemplary achievement in academic, artistic, extracurricular, athletic, and
community service activities.

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities)
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)

District/School Awards

Student awards may include verbal recognition, a letter, a certificate, a Board resolution, public
ceremony, trophy, gift, plaque, or monetary gift.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop criteria for the selection of student award
recipients.

Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

At graduation from high school, students whose academic achievements in core curriculum areas
have been outstanding shall receive special recognition.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify graduating high school students who have
demonstrated mastery of the high school curriculum qualifying them for the Golden State Seal
Merit Diploma. (Education Code 51454)

(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

State Seal of Biliteracy

The district shall present the State Seal of Biliteracy to each graduating high school student who
has attained a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing in one or more

languages in addition to English. (Education Code 51460-51464)

(cf. 6142.2 - World Language Instruction)
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)



In order to affirm the value of bilingualism and encourage students' enrollment in world
language programs, the Superintendent or designee may present awards at appropriate grade
levels to recognize the pursuit and/or attainment of grade-level proficiency in one or more
languages in addition to English. The Superintendent or designee may also present awards to
English learners who are reclassified as fluent English proficient to recognize proficiency in both
English and the student's native language.

State Seal of Civic Engagement

The Superintendent or designee shall present the State Seal of Civic Engagement to each student
who demonstrates excellence in civics education and participation and has demonstrated an
understanding of the U.S. Constitution, the California Constitution, and the democratic system of
government. (Education Code 51470-51474)

All district students shall be afforded the opportunity to earn the State Seal of Civic Engagement,
regardless of their background, communities, or experiences. No student shall be denied such
opportunity based on academic ability, alternative school setting, or unique or unconventional
expression of civic engagement.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 0415 - Equity)

(ct. 6157 - Distance Learning)

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program)

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

Scholarship and Loan Fund

The Board shall establish and maintain a scholarship and loan fund which shall be used to
provide interest-free loans for educational advancement, scholarship, and/or grants-in-aid to bona
fide organizations, students, or graduates of district schools. (Education Code 35310, 35315)

(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation)
(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests)

The district's scholarship and loan fund shall be administered by a district committee composed
of Board members, the Superintendent, and such other community, staff, administrative, and/or
student representatives as determined by the Board. (Education Code 35310)



The Board shall select its own representatives to the committee. Staff, community, and/or
student representatives shall be selected by the Superintendent. Members of this committee
shall serve two-year terms.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives)

The committee may accept gifts, donations, and bequests made for the purposes of the fund and
may prescribe conditions or restrictions on these gifts and bequests. If the donor imposes any
conditions, the committee shall review the conditions and make a recommendation to the Board
as to the compatibility of such conditions with the intent and purpose of the fund. The Board may
prohibit the committee from accepting any donation under conditions it finds incompatible with
the fund's intents and purposes. (Education Code 35313)

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board at least annually regarding the status
and activity of the fund. (Education Code 35319)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

220 Nondiscrimination

35160 Authority of governing boards

35310-35319 Scholarship and loan funds

44015 Awards to employees and students

51243-51245 Credit for private school foreign language instruction
51450-51455 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

51460-51464 State Seal of Biliteracy

51470-51474 State Seal of Civic Engagement

52164.1 Assessment of English language skills of English learners
GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 Brown Act open meeting laws

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

876 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

1632 Credit for private school foreign language instruction
11517.6-11519.5 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
SSCE Implementation Guidance
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www csba.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
Californians Together: http://www.californianstogether.org
(3/12  4/15) 12/20 (updated Flournoy School District 5/21)



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Awards For Achievement

AR 5126
Students

District/School Awards

The Superintendent or designee may appoint an awards committee at each school which may
consist of school administrators, staff members, parents/guardians, community members, and
student representatives. The committee shall submit recommendations for student awards to the
Superintendent or designee for approval.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

Individual awards in excess of $200 must be expressly approved by the Governing Board.
(Education Code 44015)

Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

To be eligible to receive the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma upon graduation from high school,
a student shall complete all requirements for a high school diploma and shall demonstrate
mastery of the curriculum in mathematics, English language arts, science, U.S. history, and two
other subject matter areas selected by the student by meeting at least one of the following criteria
for each subject: (Education Code 51451, 51452; 5 CCR 876)

1. Mathematics and English language arts

a. A grade of at least B+ or the numerical equivalent in a single course each semester
completed in grade 9, 10, or 11

b. An achievement level of "Standard Met" or above for the high school Smarter Balanced
Summative Assessment

2. Science

a. A grade of at least B+ or the numerical equivalent in a single course each semester
completed in grade 9, 10, or 11

b. An achievement level of "Standard Met" or above for the high school California Science
Test taken in grade 10 or 11



3. U.S. history

a. A grade of at least B or the numerical equivalent in the required U.S. history course each
semester
b. A qualifying score that demonstrates mastery of the subject as determined by the district

for an exam produced by a private provider or the district
4. Two additional subject areas of the student's choosing

a. Any additional qualifying grade or score listed above, earned for the subject of English
language arts, mathematics, science, or U.S. history not already used to meet eligibility

b. A grade of at least B or the numerical equivalent upon completion of high school courses
in other subjects

& A qualifying score that demonstrates mastery of other subjects, as determined by the
district, for an exam produced by a private provider or the district

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify students who have
earned the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma and shall affix an insignia to the high school
diploma and transcript of each such student. (Education Code 51454)

(ct. 5125 - Student Records)

The Superintendent or designee shall submit an insignia request form to the California
Department of Education in sufficient time to allow for processing of the request prior to the
high school graduation ceremony.

State Seal of Biliteracy

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Biliteracy upon graduation, a student shall demonstrate
a high level of proficiency in English and at least one other language, which may include
American Sign Language, by meeting all of the following state-established criteria:

(Education Code 51461)

L: Completion of all English language arts requirements for graduation with an overall
grade point average of at least 2.0 in those classes

2. Passage of the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress for English



language arts or any successor test administered in grade 11 at or above the "Standard Met"
achievement level

3. Proficiency in one or more languages other than English, demonstrated through one of
the following methods:

a. Passage of a world language Advanced Placement (AP) exam with a score of 3 or higher
or an International Baccalaureate (IB) exam with a score of 4 or higher

b. Successful completion of a four-year high school course of study in a world language,
attaining an overall grade point average of at least 3.0 in that course of study, and oral
proficiency in the language comparable to that required on an AP or IB exam

& [f no AP exam or off-the-shelf language test exists, passage of a district language exam
that can be certified to meet the rigor of a four-year high school course of study in a given
language and, at a minimum, assesses speaking, reading, and writing in a language other than
English at the proficient level or higher

d. If a language is not characterized by listening, speaking, or reading, or for which there is
no written system, passage of an assessment on the modalities that characterize communication

in that language at the proficient level or higher

g Passage of the SAT II world language exam with a score of 600 or higher

(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program)

(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement)

(cf. 6142.2 - World Language Instruction)

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Biliteracy, a student whose primary language is other

than English shall also attain the level which demonstrates English language proficiency on the

state's English Language Proficiency Assessments for California. (Education Code 51461)

(ct. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify high school
students who have earned the State Seal of Biliteracy and shall affix the insignia to the high
school diploma or transcript of each such student. (Education Code 51463)

State Seal of Civic Engagement

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Civic Engagement, a student shall meet district
requirements for all of the following state-established criteria:

I, Be engaged in academic work in a productive way



2. Demonstrate a competent understanding of U.S. and California Constitutions, functions
and governance of local governments, tribal government structures and organizations, the role of
the citizen in a constitutional democracy, and democratic principles, concepts, and processes

= Participate in one or more informed civic engagement project(s) that address real-world
problems and require students to identify and inquire into civic needs or problems, consider
varied responses, take action, and reflect on efforts

4. Demonstrate civic knowledge, skills, and dispositions through self-reflection

5. Exhibit character traits that reflect civic-mindedness and a commitment to positively
impact the classroom, school, community and/or society

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify students who have
carned the State Seal of Civic Engagement and shall affix the insignia to the high school diploma
or transcript of each such student. (Education Code 51473)

Scholarship and Loan Fund

The Superintendent shall serve as chief executive officer of the scholarship and loan fund and as
chairperson of the district committee established to administer the fund. The committee shall
meet at least once each fiscal year and at other such times as it may be called into session by the
Superintendent. (Education Code 35311, 35312)

Scholarship and loan funds shall be deposited, administered, and audited in accordance with
Education Code 35314 and 35318.

(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish criteria, procedures, and deadlines for student
applications for scholarships and/or loans from the fund. As applicable, the Superintendent or
designee may require the student to submit letters of recommendation or other supplementary
materials providing evidence of the student's accomplishments and/or need.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Activities and Programs)

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall annually distribute information about eligibility

requirements for the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma, State Seal of Biliteracy, State Seal of

Civic Engagement, and/or any district awards programs to students at the applicable grade levels.
(3712 4/15) 12/20 (updated Flournoy School District 5/21)

'



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Immunizations

BP 5141.31
Students

To protect the health of all students and staff and to curtail the spread of infectious diseases, the
Governing Board shall cooperate with state and local public health agencies to encourage and
facilitate immunization of all district students against preventable diseases.

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing)

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

#**Note: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect the grade levels and
programs offered by the district.***

###Note: Health and Safety Code 120335 requires districts to ensure that students are fully
immunized prior to admission and are fully immunized against all specified diseases before
advancing to grade 7. See the accompanying administrative regulation for requirements
pertaining to the immunization record, including the diseases for which students must be
immunized. ***

***Note: Health and Safety Code 120335, provides that such immunization requirements do
not apply when a parent/guardian files a letter or affidavit prior to January 1, 2016 stating
personal beliefs opposed to immunization (effective only until the student enters the next grade
span), a student is enrolled in independent study and does not receive classroom-based
instruction, or a student who qualifies for an individualized education program (IEP) is accessing
any special education and related services required by the student's IEP. Additionally, Health
and Safety Code 120730, as amended by SB 276 (Ch. 278, Statutes of 2019) and SB 714 (Ch.
281, Statutes of 2019), and Health and Safety Code 120372, as added by SB 276 and amended
by SB 714, specify the conditions under which a medical exemption is effective. See the
accompanying administrative regulation for further information about exemptions.***

Each student enrolling for the first time in a district school, preschool, or child care and
development program or enrolling in or advancing to grade 7 shall present an immunization
record from any authorized private or public health care provider certifying that the student has
received all required immunizations in accordance with law. Students shall be excluded from
school or exempted from immunization requirements only as allowed by law.

(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance)
(cf. 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance)



(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

***Note: 17 CCR 6035 allows a student transferring from another school in the United States
to be conditionally admitted for up to 30 school days while waiting for the transfer of
immunization records from the student's previous school; see the accompanying administrative
regulation. However, the California Department of Public Health's California Immunization
Handbook for Pre-kindergarten (Child Care) Programs and Schools recommends that schools
request parents/guardians to bring their child's personal immunization record from the child's
health care provider to registration, rather than waiting for the cumulative file.***

***Note: Pursuant to 42 USC 11431 and Education Code 48853.5, homeless children and
foster youth must be immediately enrolled even if they are unable to produce records normally
required for enrollment, including medical records. See AR 6173 - Education for Homeless
Children and AR 6173.1- Education for Foster Youth. In addition, pursuant to Education Code
49701, children of military families must be allowed 30 days from the date of enrollment to
obtain required immunizations; see AR 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families.
These exceptions are also addressed in the accompanying administrative regulation. ***

Transfer students shall be requested to present immunization records upon registration at district
schools if possible.

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

***Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that permit medical personnel
to administer immunizations at school as authorized by Education Code 49403. Pursuant to
Education Code 49403, immunizations may be provided by a licensed physician or, if acting
under the direction of a supervising physician, a registered nurse (including a school nurse),
physician assistant, nurse practitioner, licensed vocational nurse, or nursing student acting under
the supervision of a registered nurse. The authority of any health care practitioner, other than a
licensed physician, to administer immunizations in a school immunization program is limited to
immunizations for annual seasonal influenza, influenza pandemic episodes, and other diseases
that represent a current or potential outbreak as declared by a federal, state, or local public health
officer. Whenever a health care provider is authorized to administer immunizations at school,
the school nurse must be notified and must maintain control, as necessary, as the supervisor of
health in accordance with Education Code 44871 and other statutes.***

The Superintendent or designee may arrange for an authorized health care provider to administer
immunizations at school to any student whose parent/guardian has consented in writing. At the
beginning of the school year, parents/guardians shall be notified of their right to provide consent
for the administration of an immunization to their child at school.  (Education Code 48980,
49403)



(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

44871 Qualifications of supervisor of health

46010 Total days of attendance

48216 Immunization and exclusion from attendance

48853.5 Immediate enrollment of foster youth

48980 Required notification of rights

49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunizations
49426 Duties of school nurses

49701 Flexibility in enrollment of children of military families
51745-51749.6 Independent study

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

120325-120380 Immunization against communicable disease, especially:
120335 Immunization requirement for admission

120372 Statewide medical exemption electronic standardized form
120395 Information about meningococcal disease, including recommendation for vaccination
120440 Disclosure of immunization information

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

430 Student records; definition

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17

6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

11432 Immediate enrollment of homeless children

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Exemptions FAQs

Guide to Immunization Requirements for Pre-kindergarten (Child Care)

Guide to Immunization Requirements for K-12th Grade

Parents’ Guide to Immunizations Required for Pre-kindergarten (Child Care)

Parents' Guide to Immunizations Required for School Entry

Vaccinations and Medical Exemptions Questions and Answers

California Immunization Handbook for Pre-kindergarten (Child Care) Programs and Schools,
10th Edition, July 2019

EDUCATION AUDIT APPEALS PANEL PUBLICATIONS

Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and HIN1, October 2009
WEB SITES

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Department of Public Health, Immunization Branch:
http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/immunize.aspx

California Department of Public Health, Shots for Schools: http://www.shotsforschool.org
California Health & Human Services Agency: http://www.chhs.ca.gov/
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov

Education Audit Appeals Panel: http://www.eaap.ca.gov

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

(11/10 10/15) 12/20 (updated 5/21 Flournoy School District)



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Immunizations

AR 5141.31
Students

Required Immunizations

Upon a student's registration at a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the
student's parents/guardians a written notice summarizing the state's immunization requirements.

The Superintendent or designee shall not unconditionally admit any student to a district school,
preschool, or child care and development program for the first time nor admit or advance any
student to grade 7, unless the student has been fully immunized. The student shall present
documentation of full immunization, in accordance with the age/grade and dose required by the
California Department of Public Health (CDPH), against the following diseases: (Health and
Safety Code 120335; 17 CCR 6025)

1. Measles, mumps, and rubella

2 Diphtheria, tetanus, and pertussis (whooping cough)
3, Poliomyelitis (polio)

4. Hepatitis B

5 Varicella (chickenpox)

6. Haemophilus influenza type b (Hib meningitis)

7 Any other disease deemed appropriate by CDPH
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

(cf. 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten)

However, full immunization against hepatitis B shall not be a condition by which the
Superintendent or designee shall admit or advance any student to grade 7. (Health and Safety



Code 120335)

A student who qualifies for an individualized education program (IEP), unless otherwise exempt,
shall be fully immunized in accordance with Health and Safety Code 120335 and this regulation.
However, the district shall continue to implement the student's IEP and shall not prohibit the
student from accessing any special education and related services required by the student's IEP
regardless of whether the student is fully immunized. (Health and Safety Code 120335)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

School personnel shall record information for each student regarding all doses of required
immunizations and the status of all requirements in accordance with 17 CCR 6070. The school
records shall be based on the student's immunization record provided by the student's health care
provider, from the student's previous school immunization record, or through the California
Immunization Registry (CAIR). (17 CCR 6070)

Exemptions

Exemption from one or more immunization requirements shall be granted under any of the
following circumstances:

L A medical exemption is submitted using the standardized form developed by CDPH and
transmitted using CAIR which includes, but is not limited to, a description of the medical basis
for which the exemption for each individual immunization is sought and whether the medical
exemption is permanent or temporary. (Health and Safety Code 120372)

A student who has a medical exemption issued prior to January 1, 2020 shall be allowed to
continue enrollment until the next grade span, except that after July 1, 2021, a student may not be
admitted or advanced to grade 7 unless the student has been immunized or a medical exemption
form filed as stated above. (Health and Safety Code 120370)

A temporary exemption shall not exceed one year, and all medical exemptions shall not extend
beyond the grade span. (Health and Safety Code 120372)



If a student's medical exemption is revoked by CDPH on the basis that the exemption does not
meet applicable criteria for medical exemptions, the student shall continue in attendance and,
within 30 calendar days of the revocation, commence the immunization schedule required for
conditional admittance pursuant to 17 CCR 6050, as described below. (Health and Safety Code
120372)

The student's parent/guardian may appeal a revocation to the Secretary of California Health and
Human Services. If a revocation is appealed, the student shall continue in attendance and shall
not be required to commence the immunization schedule required for conditional admittance
provided the appeal is filed within 30 calendar days of the revocation. (Health and Safety Code
120372, 120372.05)

2 The student's parent/guardian filed with the district, before January 1, 2016, a letter or
written affidavit stating that an immunization is contrary to the student's personal beliefs, in
which case the student shall be exempted from the immunization until the student enrolls in the
next applicable grade span requiring immunization (birth to preschool, grades K-6, grades 7-12).
(Health and Safety Code 120335)

(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs)

When a student transfers to a different school within the district or transfers into the district from
another school district in California, the student's personal beliefs exemption filed before January
1, 2016, shall remain in effect until the next applicable grade span. A student transferring from a
school outside the district shall present a copy of the personal beliefs exemption upon
enrollment. When a student transfers into the district from outside California and presents a
personal beliefs exemption issued by another state or country prior to January 1, 2016, the
Superintendent or designee may consult with legal counsel regarding the applicable
immunization requirements.

3. The student is enrolled in an independent study program pursuant to Education Code
51745-51749.6 and does not receive classroom-based instruction. (Health and Safety Code
120335)

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)
Conditional Enrollment

The Superintendent or designee may conditionally admit a student with documentation from an
authorized health care provider that the student has not received all the immunizations required
for the student's age group, but has commenced receiving doses of all required vaccines and is
not due for any other doses at the time of admission. The Superintendent or designee shall
notify the student's parents/guardians of the date by which the student must complete all the



remaining doses as specified in 17 CCR 6035. (Health and Safety Code 120340; 17 CCR 6035)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

In addition, a transfer student may be conditionally admitted for up to 30 school days while the
student's immunization records are being transferred from the previous school. If such
documentation is not presented within 30 days, the student shall be excluded from school until
the required immunizations have been administered. (17 CCR 6035)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately enroll homeless students, foster youth, and
students of military families even if their immunization records are missing or unavailable at the
time of enrollment. School or district staff shall work with the student's prior school to obtain the
student's immunization records or shall ensure that the student is properly immunized.

(Education Code 48853.5, 49701; Health and Safety Code 120341; 42 USC 11432)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

The Superintendent or designee shall review the immunization record of each student admitted
conditionally every 30 days until that student has received all the required immunizations. If the
student does not receive the required immunizations within the specified time limits, the student
shall be excluded from further attendance until the immunizations are received. (Health and
Safety Code 120375; 17 CCR 6040, 6070)

Exclusions Due to Lack of Immunizations

If an enrolled student who was previously believed to be in compliance with immunization
requirements 1s subsequently discovered to not be in compliance with requirements for
unconditional or conditional admission, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
parent/guardian that evidence of proper immunization or an appropriate exemption must be
provided within 10 school days. This notice shall refer the parent/guardian to the student's usual
source of medical care or, if the student has no usual source of medical care, then to the county
health department or school immunization program, if any. (Education Code 48216; 17 CCR
6040)

(cf. 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance)
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

The Superintendent or designee shall exclude from further attendance an enrolled student who
fails to obtain the required immunization within 10 school days following the parent/guardian's
receipt of the notice specified above. The student shall remain excluded from school until
documentation is provided indicating that the student has received a dose of each required
vaccine due at that time. (17 CCR 6040, 6055)

The student shall also be reported to the attendance supervisor or principal.



Exclusion Due to Exposure to Disease

If the district has good cause to believe that a student has been exposed to a disease listed in the
section "Required Immunizations" above and the student's documentation of immunization does
not show proof of immunization against that disease, that student may be temporarily excluded
from the school until the local health officer is satisfied that the student is no longer at risk of
developing or transmitting the disease. (Health and Safety Code 120370)

Records

Each student's immunization record shall be retained as part of the student's mandatory
permanent student record. District staff shall maintain the confidentiality of immunization
records and may disclose such information to state and local health departments only in
accordance with law. (Health and Safety Code 120375, 120440; 17 CCR 6070)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
The district shall also retain in the mandatory student record any physician or health officer

statement, personal beliefs letter or affidavit, reason for conditional enrollment, or any other
documentation related to the student's immunization record or exemptions.

At least annually, the Superintendent or designee shall file a written report on the immunization
status of new students with CDPH and the local department of public health on forms prescribed
by CDPH. (Health and Safety Code 120375; 17 CCR 6075)

Audits

If an audit reveals deficiencies in the district's reporting procedures, the Superintendent or
designee shall present the Board with a plan to remedy such deficiencies.

(11/12 10/15) 12/20 (updated 5/21 Flournoy School District)



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Transitional Kindergarten

BP 6170.1
Instruction

***Note: The following policy is for use by districts that maintain kindergarten and may be
revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 48000 provides that children are eligible for
kindergarten enrollment if they have their fifth birthday on or before September 1 in that school
year; see AR 5111 - Admission. Pursuant to Education Code 48000, any child whose fifth
birthday is between September 2 and December 2 must be offered a transitional kindergarten
(TK) program.***

***Note: Education Code 48000 defines TK as the first year of a two-year kindergarten
program that uses a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally
appropriate. Many of the requirements applicable to kindergarten (e.g., class size, minimum
school day, facilities) are also applicable to TK. The district will receive funding based on
average daily attendance (ADA) for students in a TK program that meets the requirements
specified in Education Code 48000. %3

***Note: For guidance on implementing TK programs, see the Transitional Kindergarten
Implementation Guide: A Resource for California Public School District Administrators and
Teachers, published by the California Department of Education (CDE). ***

The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) program for
eligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The TK
program shall assist students in developing the academic, social, and emotional skills needed to
succeed in kindergarten and beyond.

The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program. (Education
Code 48000)

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool
providers, elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in the development,

implementation, and evaluation of the district's TK program.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Eligibility

The district's TK program shall admit children whose fifth birthday is from September 2 through
December 2. (Education Code 48000)



***Note: CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs" clarify that children are required to have
documentation of required immunizations or a valid exemption prior to admission to TK. For
information about required immunizations and exemptions, see BP/AR 5141.31 -
Immunizations. ***

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program and
of the age, residency, immunization, and any other enrollment requirements. Enrollment in the
TK program shall be voluntary.

(cf. 5111 - Admission)

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

*#*Note: The following paragraph is optional. If the district chooses to allow
kindergarten-eligible children to enroll in the TK program, CDE recommends that the district
establish criteria to determine selection requirements. The parent/guardian of a
kindergarten-eligible child who is enrolled in TK must, at the end of the year, sign a
Kindergarten Continuance Form verifying agreement with the child enrolling in kindergarten the
following year; see section "Continuation in Kindergarten" below.**¥*

On a case-by-case basis, a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 may be
admitted into the district's TK program upon request of a child's parents/guardians, if the
Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the child's best interest.

***Note: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 48000, the district
may, at its discretion, determine whether to allow admittance of children whose fifth birthday is
after December 2. Such students may be admitted at any time during the school year, including at
the beginning of the year. Education Code 48000 provides that districts will not receive ADA
apportionment for a child whose birthday is after December 2 until the child's fifth birthday.***

At any time during the school year, the district may admit into the TK program a child whose
fifth birthday is after December 2 of that same school year, provided that the Superintendent or
designee recommends that enrollment in a TK program is in the child's best interest and the
child's parents/guardians approve. Prior to such enrollment, the child's parents/guardians shall be
provided information regarding the advantages and disadvantages and any other explanatory
information about the effect of early admittance. (Education Code 48000)

Curriculum and Instruction

The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and
developmentally appropriate. (Education Code 48000)



(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

##*Note: Education Code 48000 states the Legislature's intent that the TK curriculum be
aligned to the California Preschool Learning Foundations developed by CDE. These standards
address essential knowledge and skills in the subject areas listed below. The standards and
companion preschool curriculum frameworks are available on CDE's web site, *%**

The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum
frameworks developed by the California Department of Education (CDE). It shall be designed to
facilitate students' development in essential knowledge and skills related to language and
literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science,
history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional development.

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

***Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
Education Code 37202 permits districts to maintain TK and kindergarten classes for different
lengths of time during the school day, either at the same or a different school site. Districts
offering TK classes for different lengths of time are still required to meet the minimum and
maximum length of school day provided in law. Pursuant to Education Code 46111, 46115, and
46117, at the kindergarten and TK level the minimum school day is three hours (180 minutes),
including recess but excluding noon intermission, and the maximum school day is four hours
(240 minutes), excluding recess, unless the district has adopted an extended-day kindergarten
pursuant to Education Code 8973. However, pursuant to Education Code 46119, if the district
has fewer than 40 kindergarten students, the Governing Board may apply to the Superintendent
of Public Instruction to maintain two kindergarten classes of 150 minutes each, including
recesses, taught on the same day by the same teacher. Also see AR 6112 - School Day.*#*

*#¥Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48003, districts are required to provide an annual report
to CDE regarding the type of kindergarten program offered by the district, including part day,
full day, or both. The California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS) School Information
Form, located on CDE's web site, requires a report on the type of TK program offered.***

The Board shall establish the length of the school day in the district's TK program, which shall
be at least three hours but no more than four hours long. If the district has adopted an
extended-day kindergarten, the length of the school day for the TK program may be different
than the length of the school day for the kindergarten program either at the same or different
school sites. The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to CDE as to whether the
district's TK programs are offered full day, part day, or both. (Education Code 8973, 37202,
46111, 46115,46117, 48003)

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar)
(cf. 6112 - School Day)



***Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
According to CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs," it is the intent of the law to provide
separate and unique experiences for TK and kindergarten students. However, districts have
flexibility to determine how best to meet the curricular needs of each child and whether TK and
kindergarten students may be enrolled in the same classrooms.**

TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary,
provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs.

TK students may be commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a
California State Preschool Program as long as all of the requirements of each program are met
and the classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a second year or students enrolled
in a regular kindergarten. (Education Code 8235, 48000)

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)
Staffing

***Note: To be qualified to teach a TK class, the teacher must possess an appropriate multiple
subjects or early childhood education credential issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing authorizing instruction in TK. Education Code 48000 establishes additional
requirements for credentialed teachers who are first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, as
provided below.***

***Note: TK assignments are subject to assignment monitoring and reporting by the County
Superintendent of Schools in accordance with Education Code 44258.9.% %%

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes possess
a teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) that
authorizes such instruction.

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)

***Note: Education Code 48000, as amended by SB 98 (Ch. 24, Statutes of 2020), extends
until August 1, 2021, the requirement for credentialed teachers who are first assigned to a
transitional kindergarten class to meet additional qualifications, as described below.***

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1,
2021, have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable
experience in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by CTC.
(Education Code 48000)

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that
TK teachers are knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods for
teaching young children.



(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
Continuation to Kindergarten

##*Note: The following section is consistent with guidance in CDE's "Transitional
Kindergarten FAQs."***

Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the
following school year. Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a
signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance.

*#*Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that allow
kindergarten-eligible children to enroll in TK; see "Eligibility" section above. When such
students are subsequently enrolled in kindergarten, the district is required to obtain a signed
Kindergarten Continuance Form in order to receive kindergarten ADA for those children since
they would otherwise be age-eligible for first grade. CDE recommends that approval for a
student to continue in kindergarten not be sought until near the end of the year of TK, since
permission obtained unreasonably far in advance could be found invalid.***

However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled
in TK, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by
the parent/guardian near the end of the TK year consenting to the child's enrollment in
kindergarten the following year.

***Note: Pursuant to Education Code 46300, the district may not include for ADA purposes
the attendance of any student for more than two years in kindergarten or for more than two years
in a combination of TK and kindergarten.***

A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.
(Education Code 46300)

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention)

Assessment

*#*Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. One assessment
resource for TK students is CDE's Desired Results Developmental Profile, which is designed to
assess the developmental progression of all children from early infancy to kindergarten entry. ***
The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal
assessments of TK students' development and progress. The Superintendent or designee shall
monitor and regularly report to the Board regarding program implementation, the progress of

students in meeting related academic standards, and student preparedness for future education.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)



(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

8235 California State Preschool Program

8970-8974 Early primary programs; extended-day kindergarten

37202 School calendar; equivalency of instructional minutes

44258.9 Assignment monitoring by county superintendent of schools

46111 Kindergarten, hours of attendance

46114-46119 Minimum school day, kindergarten

46300 Computation of ADA, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional kindergarten
48000 Age of admission, kindergarten and transitional kindergarten

48002 Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade
48003 Kindergarten annual report

48200 Compulsory education, starting at age six

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten Readiness, Governance Brief, May 2016
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Transitional Kindergarten FAQs

Desired Results Developmental Profile, 2015

Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource for California Public School
District Administrators and Teachers, 2013

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 3, 2013

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 3, 2012

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 2, 2011

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 2, 2010

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Kindergarten Association: http://www.ckanet.org

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov

Transitional Kindergarten California: http:/tkcalifornia.org

(10/17 10/18) 12/20 (updated 5/21 Flournoy School District)



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Bylaw

Meetings And Notices

BB 9320
Board Bylaws

Meetings of the Governing Board are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district
business. In accordance with state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its
meetings in public and shall conduct closed sessions during such meetings only as authorized by
law. To encourage community involvement in the schools, Board meetings shall provide
opportunities for questions and comments by members of the public. All meetings shall be
conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative
regulations.

(ct. 9321 - Closed Session)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and
location, including teleconference location, to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action upon any
item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or district. (Government Code 54952.2)

***Note: The Brown Act prohibits serial meetings, defined under Government Code 54952.2
as a series of communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss,
deliberate, or take action on any item of district business.***

***Note: This prohibition against serial meetings also applies to communications via
technology. Email exchanges, chat room threads, or comments posted on a blog or social media
account that result in a majority of the Board "discussing" an item within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board could result in a Brown Act violation. Pursuant to Government Code
54952.2, as amended by AB 992 (Ch. 89, Statutes of 2020), Board members may engage in
separate conversations or communications with members of the public on an Internet-based
social media platform that is open and accessible to the public as long as a majority of the Board
does not use the platform to discuss among themselves business within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board and members do not comment on or use digital icons (e.g., "likes" or
emojis) to express reactions to communications made by other Board members. Consequently, a
Board member is prohibited from responding directly to any communication from other
members of the Board on a social media platform regarding matters that are within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the Board. See BB 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications.***

***¥Note: In 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001), the Attorney General opined that Government
Code 54952.2 prohibits a majority of the Board from sending emails to each other to develop a
collective concurrence as to action to be taken by the Board even if the emails are (1) sent to the



secretary and chairperson, (2) posted on the district's web site, and (3) distributed at the next
meeting. Although the Attorney General recognized that those three conditions would allow the
deliberations to be conducted, to some extent, "in public," the emails were prohibited by the
Brown Act because all debate would be completed before the meeting and members of the public
who did not have Internet access would be excluded from the debate.***

A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of
communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, including social media and other
electronic communications, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Government Code 54952.2)

*#%*Note: Government Code 54952.2 specifies that briefings between staff and Board members
are permissible in order to answer questions or to provide information, as long as the briefing is
not used to communicate the comments or position of any other Board member. Thus,
Superintendent briefings involving less than a majority of the Board are allowed, but participants
must ensure that the comments or positions of one member are not shared with other
members, ***

However, an employee or district official may engage in separate conversations with Board
members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not
communicate the comments or position of any Board members to other Board members.
(Government Code 54952.2)

(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications)

¥*Note: Government Code 54953.2 requires that all Board meetings meet the protections of
the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12132) and implementing regulations (28 CFR
35.160, 36.303). Such protections require the district to ensure that the meeting is accessible to
persons with disabilities and, upon request, to provide disability-related accommodations, such
as auxiliary aids and services. Auxiliary aids and services may include accommodations at the
actual meeting, such as a sign-language interpreter, or accommodations to the supporting
documentation, such as Braille translation of the agenda packet. Government Code 54954.2
requires that the agenda specify how, when, and to whom a request for accommodation should
be made; see BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials. ***

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the
Superintendent or designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or
modifications upon request in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.
(Government Code 54953.2, 54954.1, 54954.2)

Regular Meetings

***Note: Education Code 35140 and Government Code 54954 mandate the Board to fix the
time and place for its regular meetings by rule and regulation.***



The Board shall hold one regular meeting(s) each month. Regular meetings shall be held at
6:15p.m. on the Second Tuesday (day) at the Flournoy Union School District Building 1.

*#*Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54954.2, the agenda for a regular meeting must be
posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, at a location that is freely accessible to the public.
Government Code 54954.2 also requires that the agenda be posted on the district's Internet web
site, if it has one. Any district that does not have a web site should delete the reference to it in
the following paragraph. ***

***Note: The Attorney General has determined in 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) that
weekend hours may be counted as part of the 72-hour period for posting of the agenda prior to a
regular meeting. In the same opinion, the Attorney General found that the term "freely
accessible” requires that the agenda be posted in a location where it can be read by the public at
any time during the 72 hours immediately preceding the meeting. For example, if a building
where the agenda is posted is closed during the evening hours, the agenda must also be posted in
a location accessible during evening hours, such as a lighted display case outside of the building.
The Attorney General also opined in 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005) that the agenda may be
posted on a touch screen electronic kiosk, in lieu of a paper copy on a bulletin board, as long as
the kiosk is accessible without charge to the public 24 hours a day, seven days a week. ***

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations
freely accessible to members of the public and on the district's Internet web site. (Government
Code 54954.2)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

**#*Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.5, the agenda must list any address where the
public can inspect agenda materials that are distributed to Board members less than 72 hours
before a regular meeting; see BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials. In addition, pursuant to the
California Public Records Act (Government Code 6252-6270), agenda materials related to an
open session of a Board's regular meeting are "public records" and are subject to the inspection
of any member of the public. For a list of documents subject to disclosure by the district, see
BP/AR 1340 - Access to District Records.***

Whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the
Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the
materials available for public inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose.
(Government Code 54957.5)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
Special Meetings
***Note: Education Code 35144 and Government Code 54956 allow the Board to hold special

meetings to address any matter that requires timely action. For example, the Board may hold a
special meeting to discuss the need for an emergency state apportionment when the district is in



financial distress; see AR 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability. However, pursuant to
Government Code 54956, certain specified matters, as described below, may not be addressed in
a special meeting. ***

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of
the Board members. However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary
schedule, or other compensation of the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other
management employee as described in Government Code 3511.1. (Government Code 54956)

(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract)

***¥Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54956, written notice of a special meeting may be
delivered personally or by other means, including email or fax. Government Code 54956
requires any district that has its own Internet web site to also post the notice on its web site.
Any district that does not have its own web site should delete reference to it in the following
paragraph.***

Written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or by any other means to all
Board members and the local media who have requested such notice in writing. The notice also
shall be posted on the district's Internet web site. The notice shall be received at least 24 hours
before the time of the meeting. The notice shall also be posted at least 24 hours before the
meeting in a location freely accessible to the public. The notice shall specify the time and
location of the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall
be considered at this meeting. (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956)

Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the
meeting by filing a written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being
present at the meeting at the time it convenes. (Government Code 54956)

Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to
directly address the Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice,
before or during the item's consideration. (Government Code 54954.3)

Emergency Meetings

***Note: Government Code 54956.5 authorizes a closed session during emergency meetings,
as long as two-thirds of the members present at the meeting agree on the need for the closed
session or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, by unanimous vote of the members
present. See BB 9321 - Closed Session and E(1) 9323.2 - Actions by the Board. ***

In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption
or threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without
complying with the 24-hour notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings
pursuant to Government Code 54956. The Board shall comply with all other requirements for
special meetings during an emergency meeting. (Government Code 54956.5)



An emergency situation means either of the following: (Government Code 54956.5)

1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other
activity that severely impairs public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the
members of the Board

(cf. 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage)

2 A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction,
terrorist activity, or threatened terrorist act that poses peril so immediate and significant that
requiring the Board to provide one-hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may
endanger the public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the
Board

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the
emergency meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that
have requested notice of special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the media in the
most recent request for notification must be exhausted. If telephone services are not
functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as soon after the meeting as
possible, the Board shall notify those media representatives of the meeting and shall describe the
purpose of the meeting and any action taken by the Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the
Board president or designee shall give such notice at or near the time notification is given to the
other members of the Board about the meeting. (Government Code 54956.5)

The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or
attempted to notify, a copy of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be
posted for at least 10 days in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible. (Government
Code 54956.5)

Adjourned/Continued Meetings

The Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and location that
shall be specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn
such a meeting. If no Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the
meeting adjourned to a later time and shall give notice in the same manner required for special
meetings. (Government Code 54955)

Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment, a copy of the order or notice of
adjournment/continuance shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where
the meeting was held. (Government Code 54955)

Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings

*H*Note: The following section is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice.



Pursuant to Government Code 54954.2, the Board must still comply with the public notice
requirements when holding a study session, retreat, public forum or other such meeting. ***

The Board may occasionally convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more
detail or to receive information from staff or feedback from members of the public.

The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and
relationships.

(cf. 2000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)

(ctf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation)

Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the Board is attending a
study session, retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting. All such meetings shall comply with
the Brown Act and shall be held in open session and within district boundaries. Action items
shall not be included on the agenda for these meetings.

Other Gatherings

Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the
Brown Act provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district
business among themselves other than as part of the scheduled program: (Government Code
54952.2)

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of
issues of general interest to the public or to school board members

2, An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district
to address a topic of local community concern

3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district

4, An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency

3. A purely social or ceremonial occasion

6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the

Board members who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers
(ct. 9130 - Board Committees)

Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not
subject to the Brown Act. (Government Code 54952.2)



Location of Meetings

Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of
ancestry or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135. In addition, meetings shall not

be held in a facility which is inaccessible to individuals with disabilities or where members of the
public must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted. (Government Code 54961)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Meetings shall be held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following:
(Government Code 54954)

1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative
proceeding to which the district is a party

2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district,
provided that the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property

3 Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these
meetings are held within one of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies
giving the notice required by law

4, Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its
boundaries or if its principal office is located outside the district

5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be
impractical, solely to discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the

state or federal officials have jurisdiction

6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided
the meeting agenda is limited to items directly related to that facility

7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation,
when doing so would reduce legal fees or costs

8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques

9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an
applicant for Superintendent of the district

10.  Interview a potential employee from another district
Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in items #1-10 above, shall

still be subject to the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings
when a quorum of the Board attends the meeting.



If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting place unsafe,
meetings shall be held for the duration of the emergency at a location designated by the Board
president or designee, who shall so inform all news media who have requested notice of special
meetings by the most rapid available means of communication. (Government Code 54954)

Teleconferencing

A teleconference is a meeting of the Board in which Board members are in different locations,
connected by electronic means through audio and/or video. (Government Code 54953)

The Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the
Board's subject matter jurisdiction. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by
roll call. (Government Code 54953)

During the teleconference, at least a quorum of the members of the Board shall participate from
locations within district boundaries. (Government Code 54953)

Agéndas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations
whenever they are posted elsewhere. Additional teleconference locations may be provided to
the public. (Government Code 54953)

***Note: In 84 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 181 (2001), the Attorney General opined that a city is not
required under the Americans with Disabilities Act to provide, as an accommodation for city
council member with disabilities who was unable to attend a regularly scheduled meeting, a
teleconference connection to the member's house where the public would not be permitted to be
present. According to the Attorney General, Government Code 54953 requires that members of
the public be permitted to be present at any teleconference location.***

All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public. All teleconferenced meetings
shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties
or the public appearing before the Board, including the right of the public to address the Board
directly at each teleconference location. (Government Code 54953)

All Board policies, administrative regulations, and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that
are teleconferenced. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the
meeting at each teleconference location.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35140 Time and place of meetings

35143 Annual organizational meeting, date, and notice
35144 Special meeting

35145 Public meetings



35145.5 Agenda; public participation; regulations

35146 Closed sessions in connection with a student

35147 Open meeting law exceptions and applications
GOVERNMENT CODE

3511.1 Local agency executives

11135 State programs and activities; prohibition of discrimination
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:

54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance

54954 Time and place of regular meetings

54954.2  Agenda posting requirements, board actions

54956 Special meetings; call; notice

54956.5 Emergency meetings

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.160 Effective communications for individuals with disabilities
36.303 Auxiliary aids and services for individuals with disabilities
COURT DECISIONS

Garnier v. Poway Unified School District, No. 17-cv-2215-W (JLB), 2019 WL 4736208 (S.D.
Cal. September 26, 2019)

Knight First Amendment Institute at Columbia University v. Trump, 928 F.3d 226 (2019)
Wolfe v. City of Fremont, (2006) 144 Cal.App. 4th 54433
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005)

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001)

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001)

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2019
INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS

The ABCs of Open Government Laws

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2nd Ed., 2010
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

CSBA, GAMUT Meetings:
http://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/GamutMeetingsPolicy
California Attorney General's Office: http://oag.ca.gov/home

Institute for Local Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org

League of California Cities: http://www.cacities.org

(11/08 11/11) 12/20 (updated 5/21 Flournoy School District)



